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OCESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The seventeenth-century plantation and house of Colonel Thomas Swann were
located on NG Jones River and

_ Thomas Swann's financial position
and the fact that his home was used as a meeting place for royal commis-

sioners in 1677 suggest that the house was one of the larger residences
then standing in the colony; however, no contemporary descriptions of the
edifice are known. A general indication of its appearance was gained in
1973-74 when the Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission staff located and
tested foundations believed to be those of the Swann house at the northern
end of a cultivated field overlooking the James River, Probing and selecte
excavation revealed two abutting structures, placed diagonally to the river.
The outside dimensions of the combined foundations measure approximately
60'6" long and 23' wide, with a cellar approximately 15' by 23' at the
northeast end. The foundations of both sections are of brick laid in En-
glish bond, the length of two bricks thick, and therefore capable of sup-
porting a two-story frame building. The dimensions indicate that rooms
were ranged in a single file, creating a long rectangular house of a type
similar to William Berkeley's Green Spring. Wings or projections may have
existed, but no indication of them was found by probing. The section of
cellar fill exdmined in 1974 contained slate, a roofing material rarely
used in eighteenth-century Virginia, but found on a number of seventeenth-
century sites at Jamestown. Also recovered from the Swann basement were
several pieces of Challis earthenware, thus tentatively dating demolition
of the house to circa 1700. Surface artifacts indicate occupation of the
site from the second quarter of the gseventeenth century through the
beginning of the eighteenth century.

Probing and surface evidence indicate the existence of at least one out-
building located approximately 70 feet east of the house's south end. 1In
1656 Swann entered into an agreement with James Hugate for the latter to
build a group of wooden subsidiary buildings to Swann's design: .

one small quarteringe house of twentye five, or thertye foot long
& Soe much other out houses as will make up the same nintye Foote
of houseing, the Bredth of them not to be under fiveteene nor
above twentye Foote, all to be done as the sd, Swann Shall Contrive
& give directions...

In addition to being paid in tobacco for his services, Hugate was allowed
to live with his wife in "the house next to the water side. ...the same
houseinge two rooms, the house beinge fortye foote Long, & twentye Foote
wide", He was further permitted to plant corn "within the field...the sd
Hugate helpinge to mend the Fence" and to plant tobacco on land around the
house by the water side. The location of Hugate's lowground house has not
been established, but in 1974 a well apparently of seventeenth-century date
was excavated in the James River (SN 1he vell, whose upper
part had eroded away, was lined with compass bricks based on a heavy lap-
jointed oak ring. Brick fragments and roofing slate of the same type found
in the Swann basement give evidence of a structure on the low bank just
south of the well, although no foundations were located.

(see continuation sheet #1)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

As the home of one of the more prominent seventeenth-century planters on

the James River, Swann's Point is of both historical
importance and archaeological potential. William Swann emigrated from
England and patented 1200 acres of the point and adjoining land in 1635.
Although the location of his house is not recorded, surface artifacts
indicate occupation prior to 1650 on what is a logical site for the
dwelling.

William Swann died in 1638 and the patent was renewed by his son, Thomas.
While little is known about William, the son held the standard political
positions of the Virginia upper class, and his activities received cover-
age in the colonial and county records. He was a county tobacco viewer in
1639, a Burgess as early as 1646, both sheriff and colonel of the Surry
militia in 1652, variously a local justice and member of the General Court
in Jamestown, and a member of the Council at the time of his death in 1680,
When the Burgesses were disgatisfied with actions of Governor Samuel
Mathews and the Council in 1658 during the Commonwealth period, Swann was
on the committee to draft a resolution asserting the power of the House,

Swann became involved in a more significant resistance when he took the
side of Nathaniel Bacon in the rebellion in 1676. He, like his daughter-
in-law's father William Drummond, was among the minority of the Virginia
elite who chose to oppose Governor William Berkeley. Drummond was execut-
ed for his part in the rebellion, but Swann did not suffer., Swann, a
member of Berkeley's Council, was the first to sign Bacon's radical
August 3rd and 4th Middle Plantation declarations against Berkeley. One
Thomas High declared that "the Great Toad" Thomas Swanan had gathered men
to oppose the governor and plotted to burn Jamestown. Swann's position
led Berkeley to exclude him from the general pardon extended after sup-
pression of the rebellion., O0ddly enough, he was excluded from the pardon
on February 10, 1677, four days after Berkeley had asked and received
Swann's permission for the royal investigating commissioners to stay and
meet at Swann's Point. The Swann house, whose foundations are believed
to be those tested in 1974, offered the best available accommodations,
being one of the few large houses in the vicinity not despoiled by the
rebels. It was perhaps the presence of the commissioners that saved
Swann from punishment. After returning to England the Commissioners’
recommended retention of Swann on the Council, claiming that his support
of Bacon was the result of coercion.

(see continuation sheet #2)
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7. DESCRIPTION (Continuation Sheet) #1

(Number all sntries)

Thomas Swann's son Samuel wrote a family record before his death in 1707,
and in it noted those buried at Swann's Point. Among them were Samuel's
grandparents William (1585~1638) and Judith Swann (1589-1636); his father
(1616-80), "buried at my Grandfather's feet'; four of Thomas' five wives and
a number of his children; Samuel's own first wife Sarah Drummond (1654-96);
and her mother of the same name, wife of William Drummond. Thomas Swann's
slab tombstone with armorial decoration survives in the northeast corner
of the field, but there is a local tradition that the stone 1s not in its
orig{nal position; ¢

% L
A structure sxteedating from the second and third quarters of the eighteenth
centd!y~locat§¢h¢00 feet southeast*of the Swann foundation is known from
surface artifacts of the period and a heavy concentration of brick fragments.
The artifacts indicate occupation of this site after the Swann family had
removed from the property. The Surry County processioners returns of 1836
make reference to '"the old road leading to Swan's Point House", and various
other returns note that the Edwin White family occupied the house for the
following thirty years,

A map made by Confederate Engineers in 1863 shows that the White house and
outbuildings were near 'of the Swann house site and

outside the Register boundary.

E.A.C.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE

Swann's Point passed to Samuel Swann after the death of his father in 1680.
Samuel moved to North Carolina about 1694, returning to bury his first wife
in 1696, and in December 1706 he sold the plantation to Joseph John Jackman
for 8450, Jackman sold the property to George Marable in February, 1707,
for 8250, Tentative archaeological evidence places the destruction of the
house in this general period, so the reduction in property value may repre~-
sent loss of the house. Through family relationships, Swann's Point passed
from Marable to the Hartwell and Cocke families, remaining in the latter
family until the early nineteenth century. The property was owned by Edwin
White from prior to 1832 through the War Between the States. The buildings
then on the property do not appear to have been of great consequence, being
valued at $287 in 1845 and $400 in 1860. '

Swann's Point has valuable archaeological potential for increasing our knowl-
edge of the material culture of seventeenth-century America. Excavation of
the site should reveal much about the architecture and artifacts associated
with a person of identifiable status in the Virginia colony. In addition to
the main house, both contemporary subsidiary plantation building remains

and the site of later pccupation are located within the boundaries. Swann's
Point's archaeologicafpvalue'is enhanced by the undisturbed nature of the
evidence and the apparent early date of abandomment of the major building.

E.A.C. o ‘f -
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